Grand Isle Supervisory Union

Alburgh School District
School Board Regular Meeting
Monday, November 5, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.
Location: Alburgh Education & Community Center

Agenda
Call to Order
1. Call to Order (M. Savage)

2. Adjust the Agenda
3. Citizens and/or Staff to be Heard

4. Consent Agenda (Action)
a. Approve the minutes from 10-15-2018 and 10-22-2018

5. Reports
a. Superintendent’s
b. Financial

c. Principal's

Board Business.

6. Step 3 Grievance (Contesting Executive Assistant to Principal) (Executive Session) (M. Savage)
7. Propane Consortium (M. Savage) (Discussion)

8. Approval of Bilis for Payment (M. Savage) (Action)

9. Verify the readiness to transition to @board.gisu.org email addresses (M. Clark) {Discussion)
10. Busing Update (M. Clark) (Discussion)

11. Emergency Response Plan Review (B. Hemingway) (Discussion/Possible Action)

12. Audit Update (R. Gess) (Discussion)

13. Draft Budget Review (R. Gess) (Discussion)

14. Approve Grant Funds for locks and doors (M. Savage) (Action)

15. The resignation of Support Staff (M. Clark) (Informational)

16. Setting the Next Agenda (M. Savage) (Discussion)

17. Does Alburgh want to be part of the RFP for food service (M. Clark) (Discussion)

18. Other

Closure

19. Adjourn

Note: Executive Session: If discussion warrants and the Board so votes, some items may be discussed in
Executive Session pursuant to VSA 1 §313(a)

Discussion Items - Issues the Board needs to discuss and deliberate, but upon which no action is taken at this meeting.
Action Items - Issues that require the Board to make a decision by vote, may have been discussed over several meetings prior to this point.
Consent Items - Routine matters that need no discussion by the Board, but require Board approval. They are grouped together as a single agenda item. Background
materials are provided in the Board packet to be reviewed ahead of the meeting. If there are no concerns, they are approved with a single vote. Any member can

request the Board remove an item to be discussed and voted on separately. This frees up time at meetings.

Information Items [Incidental Information] - Matters the Board needs 1o know about, but for which no Board action is needed. The information flow is one way, from
presenter to the Board. Questions for clarification are entertained as time allows.



Alburgh School Board
Alburgh Community Education Center
October 15, 2018

Present: Board Chair Michael Savage, Board Vice Chair Trevor Creller, Board Members Stephanie
Waters, Virginia Wright, and Mallory Ovitt, Principal Beth Hemingway, GISU Interim Superintendent
Michael Clark

Meeting called to order at 5:32 P.M. by Mike Savage

Adjustment of Agenda:
o No adjustments made at this meeting.

Citizens and/or Staff to be Heard:
e No citizens or staff to be heard at this meeting.

Consent Agenda
e Approved minutes from 10-01-18
e Approved new hire contracts
e Approved building use requests

Reports:
e Principal’'s Report- Beth Hemingway updated the board on Building Maintenance, Hiring

Updates, Curriculum & Assessment, PBIS, 8th Grade Trip, Promise Committee, Mail,
Supervision and Evaluation, and Upcoming Dates

Board Business:

e Budget Priorities- Michael Clark and Beth Hemingway shared some priorities with the board
(aging infrastructure and technology replacement, social/emotional staffing, middle school
reading/writing workshop model, STEM/NGSS supplies, E911 compliance, library tech
specialist, ELL) The board asked to explore a foreign language teacher as well. Principal
Hemingway and the board would like to find a clearer way of presenting the budget to the town.
Verify readiness to transition to @board.gisu.org- ongoing
Emergency Response Plan Review- tabled this until the next meeting.

Building update- Painting projects are being completed

North Country Federal Credit Union Update- Principal Hemingway spoke to a representative at

the bank to explore opportunities.

¢ Setting the Next Agenda- draft budget if available, emergency response plan review, GISU
email accounts

Board Action:
e Stephanie Waters moved to accept the minutes of October 1, 2018 (2nd Trevor Creller) Unan.
e Trevor Creller moved to approve and issue contracts for Kathleen Cramer for .2 guidance
counselor and Kolby Patterson for middle school math (2nd Virginia Wright) 3- approved, 2
recusals (Stephanie Waters and Mallory Ovitt)




e Stephanie Waters moved to approve building use forms for Mike Savage to Sign, as presented
by the principal (2nd Virginia Wright) Unan.

e Upon review by Trevor Creller, Stephanie Waters moved to authorize the payment of current
valid invoices (2nd Virginia Wright) Unan.

e Stephanie Waters moved to adjourn at 6:20 P.M. (2nd Virginia Wright) Unan.

Respectfully Submitted,

Stephanie Waters Virginia Wright Mallory Ovitt

Trevor Creller, Vice Chair Michael Savage, Chair



Alburgh School Board
Alburgh Community Education Center
Special Meeting October 22, 2018

Present: Board Chair Michael Savage, Board Vice Chair Trevor Creller, Board Members Stephanie
Waters, Virginia Wright, and Mallory Ovitt, Principal Beth Hemingway, GISU Interim Superintendent
Michael Clark

Meeting called to order at 5:30 P.M. by Mike Savage

Vermont Labor Relations Board Update:
e Moved to executive session to discuss labor relations

Board Action:
e Trevor Creller moved to enter executive session for labor relations (2nd Stephanie Waters)
o The board exited executive session at 5:46 P.M.
o Stephanie Waters moved to authorize Chris Leopold to respond to the Vermont Labor
Board in regards to the petition (2nd Virginia Wright) Unan.
e Stephanie Waters moved to adjourn at 5:48 P.M. (2nd Trevor Creller) Unan.

Respectfully Submitted,

Stephanie Waters Virginia Wright Mallory Ovitt

Trevor Creller, Vice Chair Michael Savage, Chair



Superintendent’s Report

November 2018

Audits

The audit firm has finalized the FY 17 GISU Audit and has sent us the final version. They will review the
audit with the GISU board at its November 26, 2018 meeting. We expect that we will be receiving the
final copies of the local district audits soon. Rob and | are making arrangements for the audit firm to
present the local districts audits at board meetings as soon as possible. We have also created a tab on
the GISU website and are posting the audits there as they become available.

South Hero Alternative Governance Structure Tentatively Accepted

The South Hero AGS Plan was tentatively accepted at the Vermont State Board of Education’s most
recent meeting. The plan submitted by the South Hero Board included the South Hero School District
remain a single district aligned with the Grand Isle Supervisory Union. In your packet there is a VT
Digger article which goes into more detail about the SBE’s meeting and the decisions they made.

Consolidated Federal Program Fiscal Monitoring letter

In you packet is a letter from the Vermont Agency of Education. The letter indicates the most recent
Fiscal Monitoring visit by the AOE was successful and GISU has fulfilled its requirements which were
identified. The letter specifically commended “the Supervisory Union’s CFP Team Leader, Megan Grube
for her diligent work in both organizing the visit and submitting all the required documentation to
resolve the outstanding issues. She was a pleasure to work with and we look forward to our continued
interactions.”

Grants Management 201

I’'m pleased to report that Rob Gess was asked to serve on a panel for the October Grants Management
201 workshop. Rob was selected by the AOE as a new business manager working in a Supervisory Union
that had made a great deal of progress in addressing past issues with grants management.

VSBIT Trustee
At the VSBIT annual meeting | was elected to a three year term on the VSBIT Board of Directors.

Budgets

Rob and the rest of the Admin Team are working on the first drafts of the individual districts budgets.
We are looking forward to presenting them to the boards at their November meetings and getting your
feedback.



Director of Student Services
We expect to post the Director of Student Services position in early November. Joyce Tuck has
volunteered to be a School Board Member on the Hiring Committee. If there are other board members

interested in serving on the committee please let me know as soon as possible.

Thank you for the work you do to support education throughout the Islands.



01 jo | abed Nd6ECS'y 8LOC/L/LL

00°000°C 000 000 000 00°000°T sa1ddng - ylelN 00-111-0195-0011-100 ‘8T
00°00S 000 000 000 00°00¢ sayyddng - oS0 00-601-0195-0011-100 LT
$9°9L8°1 SEETIT 69°106 99°17T1 00°000°% salddng - uy 00-£01-0195-0011-100 ‘9T
85°6T¥°9 TWOLS 1L 8P E8L L ¥6'98L°E 00°000°81 salfddng [esoual-feuononnsul 00-000-0195-0011-100 ‘ST
(LesTD LESTY 000 LESTY 00°00T [oaen-feuononnsup 00-000-085S-0011-100 ¥
00°000°0€ 000 000 00°0 00'000°0€ [BUONIROOA /D YO2 ], - UOIINY, 00-000-6955-0011-100 €C
96'8T1°0L 000 0070 000 96'8$T1°0L $110 031 0} Justuiked Jletaq-uQ 21e1s 00-000-895S-0011-100 'TT
(00°s59) 00°0Z¥'L1 00°01L°8 00°01L°8 00°$90°L1 eAlld aelg ul - SH uomng 00-000-995S-0011-100 1T
00°000°122 000 000 000 00°000°12Z dleAlld/oHqnd 231§ JO INO-SH uoning, 00-000-¥9¢5-0011-100 0T
00'80S°8¥1°1 000 000 000 00'80S8¥1°1 9e1S Ul - SH uoning, 00-000-1955-0011-100 61
00°000°9 000 0070 000 00°000°9 (teuoneonpg) sdis], PId1d 00-000-S15S-0011-100 81
00°00¢ 000 000 000 00°00¢ owdmnby o, ssedai-[euononusul 00-000-€€HS-0011-100 "L1
00°000°01 000 000 000 00°000°01 'SOAS "onpy [BUOISSI0Id 00-000-0TES-0011-100 91
00°0LTT 00°0€T’1 007069 00°0%S 00°00S°€ Juawidojaaa(] [euoissajoid-jeuononasu] 00-000-06S-0011-100 'S1
90'60€y STI9L 000 ST'I9L 12°0L0°S soueansu] uoisiA dnoi3-jeuondnnsuy 00-000-18ZS-0011-100 ti
POESTET LL'STHT 000 LL'STFT 18°8L9°61 souInsu [e3ua( dnoss-feuononsul 00-000-08¢5-0011-100 "€1
00°000°01 000 000 0070 00°000°01 JUSWIASINQLUIY ISINO0D-[BUOHONNSU] 00-000-0LTS-0011-100 T
00'¥0TY 007CsY 000 00°CTsY 00'959% dwoy) JuswAofdwoun-[euononnsu] 00-000-09ZS-0011-100 ‘11
00°€€16 000 000 000 00°€€1’6 ‘dwo) sxax10p-fRUONINNSUL (0-000-05STS-0011-100 01
T6'611°E 000 000 000 6611°¢ uond( Juswainay 2a4oidwy 00-000-1+2S-001 1-100 6
(r8°517) 8 Sy 000 18384 000 JuouraIey dakojdwy 00-000-0+TS-0011-100 '8

$600€°1 S8PLE 000 S8VLE 08'SL9t o] dnoig - [euononnsul 00-000-0£ZS-0011-100 "L

YL'LLE'69 €EG1LST 000 £C°S1L°G1 LO'E6S°S8 eoy-feuononysu] 00-000-0¢¢S-0011-100 9

9yT16°12T 90°LL6'ST 000 90°LL6'8T 75°688°05T ey dnois-feuononisup 00-000-012$-0011-100 'S

65°5T1°06 PO'TEL'ST 000 POTET'ST €9°LSTSII Satie[e§ sopte-jeuononnsuy 00-000-S11S-0011-100
(ecyLel) EEPLEL 000 ECVLEL 000 Are[eg 9p1y $0$ 30V 00-000-11$-0011-100 €

0SpESYI 05°S9¥°S 000 05'S9Y°S 00°000°0¢ saminsqns-feuondONASU] 00-000-C115-0011-100 T

ST'T0T06L S8 Y0P E61 000 S8 PO C6!1 00°909°€86 Sstlefes-jeuononnsul 00-000-0115-0011-100 't

leuonon.nsuy 0011
puny jeRUIH 160

610T/0¢/9 610T/0¢/9 6102/0€/9 610T/0¢/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L uonduosa(] / J2qUINN JUN0SYY
Suruteway palequinoug
unowy % Juadg Sa0URIqUINOUT pousd papodoy  198png paidopy
v laounJg 8po Jusuwisiels sapo9 103lqO pue uoljoung spund ||y sasuadxgy

026.1 # odey JouysI@ jooyds umoy] ybunqgy




0l jo g abed

WNdlv:esy 8L0c/L/LL

0T1¥1 08'8S 000 08'8S 00°00T 917 dno1n - dMS 00-000-0€TS-1011-100 'S§
75°866°8 £TELYT 000 €TELYL SL1LY0T VOId dMS 00-000-0ZZS-1011-100 '#S
05 180°T€ ¥1°901°1 000 $1°901°1 $9°L81°TE yieaH dnoin dmsS 00-000-01ZS-1011-100 €S
(00°06) 0006 00°0 00°06 000 SAE[ES SOV dMS 00-000-ST16-1011-100 ‘TS
89°6E€°L11 TE091°7C 000 TE091°CT 00°005°6€1 sjom ], jou] sate[eS dMS 00-000-011$-1011-100 IS
wesS044 IPIA [0042S 1011
90'778°99LTS  98°6SB'ETES T0°€1S'9ZS $8'IPELGTS 76°189°060°€S [euonINySUI OOIT TV.LOL
0005 000 000 000 00052 uonBnSISNY/S92:/5a0CE 00-000-0185-0011-100 "0S
00'L1EW1 00°€89°S 00°€89°S 000 00°000°0 awdinby 1endwos-feuononnsu] 00-000-€LS-0011-100 6%
50999 85°6¢€ 85°6€€ 000 00°000°L SOINIXL,] 729 SIMILIN-JEUOHONASUL (0-000~EELS-0011-100 8%
00008 000 000 00°0 00008 wowdimby - pg sAyd 00-L11-0€LS-0011-100 LY
09°61) 09615 000 09°61$ 000 Juswdinby jeuononnsut-euoRINNSU] 00-000-0£L$-0011-100 "9
00°000°T 000 000 000 00°000°1 PA Y93 - 95ud§ 00-€11-1895-0011-100 'S
SHLOST §5°266°1 00°6¥€°1 SSEP9 00005°€ a1emyog Joindwoo-[euononisul 00-000-0£95-0011-100 ¥
00°00S 000 00°0 000 00°00S soAendiuely - 03108 00-€11-0995-0011-100 "€¥
£0'9EY 1 L6'E9 L6ES 000 0070051 saaeIndIuRIA - WEN 00-111-099S-0011-100 ‘T
00°000°1 000 000 000 0070001 $90149(7 aanendiugy - £0eIN[T 00-$01-0995-0011-100 "1+
8910 ¥8°91¢C 00°0 #8912 000 §901A9(] dAlR[RdIURLLI-[EUONONISY] 00-000-0995-0011-100 ‘0¥
SLTEY'T ST'LY STLY 000 00°008°C S[ELINRA [ENSIA-OIpNE-fRuolonnsul 00-000-059$-0011-100 '6€
00°001 000 000 000 007001 S[ea1pOLIdg/sauIzeBeIA - SAIPNIS [8190S 00-S11-1#95-0011-100 "8€
00°05€ 000 000 000 00°05€ S[ESIpOLIdJ/sauIZeBRIA - AovIal] 00-SO1-1+9$-0011-100 "LE
0TS 080t 000 08'#0% 00°0St S[EIIPOLIa/SAUIZESRIN 00-000-1+95-0011-100 "9¢€
00°000°C 000 000 00°0 00'000°C $Y00g - SAPMIS [2190S 00-§11-049S-0011-100 'S€
000051 000 000 000 00°008°1 sj00g - UG 00-€11-0+95-0011-100 FE
LL'OOL'6 £7°66¢ $6'14T 8TLS 00°000°01 sjoog - AorIAIIT 00-501-0¥9S-0011-100 €€
(oTssh 0TsS1 000 0T'sS1 000 syooag-[euononusul 00-000-0¥95-0011-100 CE
(86'61€) 86678 01°€89 88'991 007005 sa1ddng - s sAYd 00-L11-0195-0011-100 1€
00°05€ 000 000 000 00°0S¢€ satjddang - sa1pmg [e100S 00-$T1-0195-0011-100 0
000051 000 000 000 00°00S°1 sorddng - 20Ud19§ 00-€11-0195-0011-100 6T
6107/0€/9 6102/0€/9 6107/0€/9 610T/0€/9
- 810T/1/L - 810TU/1/L - 810¢/1/L - 810T/1/L uondusaq / 1qunN Junoxdy
Surureway paraquunauyg
unowy 29 juadg sagueIqUINOUZ pousd papoday  198png padopy

0Z6.| # voday

sapo9 103lgqO pue uoljoun4 spund ||y sesuadxgy
Jou3sIg jooyos umo] ybunqgjy




04 jo ¢ abed

WNdlviesy 8L0c/L/LL

€9°860°S1 1T09€y 000 17°09€y ¥8'851°61 e2y-pH [e192dS 00-000-022S-00Z1-100 6L
99°05£°99 67°0SL Y1 00°0 67°0SLp1 S 10118 souemsu] yHesH dnos3-pg [e109d§ 00-000-0125-00T1-100 ‘8L
vL'99T 61 E1°L6L ]S 00°0 €1°L6L8S L8'€90PST SaLie[es Sopte-pd [e103dS 00-000-S115-00Z1-100 "LL
(00°0£€D) 00°0£9°C 000 00°0€9°C 00°00€ saimnsqns-p3 {evads 00-000-T11$-00T1-100 9L
uonednpy [e12ds 00T1
S80I£'SES 08°8LI'01S 96'¥SS P8ETL0IS S9°68H'8PS 79 V-1 SS90V [BSUdAIUN} €211 TV.LOL
00°00€ 000 000 000 00°00€ dinbg 7 s)j00g {00U2$31d  00-000-09S-ETE1-100 'SL
L8°8SY A2 96'4S L1'98% 00°000°T sarddng jooyasard 00-000-0195-€T11-100 +L
00260°¢ 000 000 000 00'T60°€ 79 WY/MVN - Uonmy, 00-000-£95S-€Z11-100 €L
00°00S 000 000 000 0000 sdiLy, ppaL] M-24d 00-000-$1SS-€T11-100 TL
00°00€ 000 000 000 00°00€ juswdojeaa( JoId -3 24d - V1 00-000-06TS-€C11-100 1L
0070011 000 000 000 00°001°1 "quIISY 3SIN0T - Ad -~V 00-000-0LZS-€TTI-100 0L
0F'81¢ 097 000 097 00 17€ “dwo) “dwaun -3 Ad -¥N 00-000-092$-€Z11-100 '69
0081 00°0 000 000 0081 "dwo) s1I0M - 214V 00-000-0SZS-€T11-100 89
(0v'60) 0¥'6T 000 0¥'67 000 "suf QY1 dno1p -3 Ad-VN 00-000-0€ZS-€TI1-100 LY
97'121°C 61189 000 61189 $9°'708°C VOId -3 21d V1 00-000-0TTS-€Z11-100 99
0000¥°C 000 00°0 000 00°00%°C sl dnoip -3 31d V1 00-000-012S-€T11-100 "$9
(00°05¥) 00°05% 00°0 00°0S% 000 S3LIR[ES SAIMNSANG HAId V1 00-000-TIIS-EC11-100 ¥9
761818 8Y¥SH°8 000 87 S8 00'9£9'9€ S3LIR[ES 3] 1-SS00Y [BSIGAIUL] 00-000-011S-€C11-100 €9
T9 19Y/3-04 §SIIIY [ES12AIUN) €TTT
0£°89S 191$ 60°€9€'STS 0008 60°£9€°STS 6E1E6981S weaS0.44 IPIM 100498 1011 TV.LOL
07'9%S 09°€01 000 09°€01 00059 saiddng -dmS 00-000-019$-1011-100 ‘9
00501 000 000 000 00°501°1 yuswdoaas(l JoId dMS 00-000-06ZS-10T1-100 19
8T LE] 7L6T 000 L6t 00°L91 uoistA dnorn dmsS 00-000-18ZS-1011-100 09
68T 80°96 000 8096 00°5TS [eyuaq dnoiy dMS 00-000-0825-1011-100 '65
08'¥S1 0TSy 000 0TSy 00007 ‘dwo) jdwaun JMS 00-000-0925-1011-100 '8S
00579 000 000 000 00529 "dwo)) SIIOM dMS 00-000-0STS-1011-100 "LS
00°001°1 000 000 000 00°001°1 syyouag JuawANNY G440 dMS 00-000-T€TS-1011-100 '9S
6102/0€/9 6107/0€/9 6102/0€/9 6107/0€/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810Z/1/L uondiIsaq / J9qUINN Un0dy
Sururewoy palequinousy
junowry ¥ Juadg SOURIQUINOUY pouag pauodoy 198png paydopy

026/ # woday

sopo9 39alqO pue uoidung spund ||y sesuadxg
| Joulsiq [ooydss umo] ybinqly




0l jo ¥ abed

Wdlv:Zsy 8L0c/LILL

$9'88 000 000 000 $9'88 “dwo)) s1I0p - [00Y9§ JPWWNG 00-000-0STS-CTHI-100 001
(sozeD) §5°L99 000 $5°L99 05°¢€S VYOI - jooyog Jewwng  §0-000-02¢S-7TH1-100 66
00°52LD) 00°STL'8 000 00°STL'8 00°000°Z Arefes -weioid [oOYIS PWWNS 00-000-0115-TTH1-100 86

weldolJ [00Yd§ owwns 77Hi

I8°S07°€LS €8°EEL'9S ST'S8$ 85°'8+9'98 S9°6E6°6LS san1ARdY Apog JuapmS Iyl IV.LOL

78'975°S 8IELY'Y STS8 €6'L8EY 00°000°01 sng/|dng/dxz/suodg -feuononnsuy 00-000-£895-01+1-100 L6

00°00L°T 000 000 000 00°00L°1 sauddng jerousd-senIAnoy Apog Juspnis 00-000-019$-01+1-100 96

007000°C 000 000 00°0 00°000T SOAS PISEUAING IO -SAVANOY JUBPMS 00-000-00SS-01F1-100 'S6

00'000°8 000 000 000 00°000°8 SweIgold - SOBIALOE JUIPNIS 00-000-LEES-0TTI-100 6

ST8S 000 000 000 ST'8S DM 1301 JUSpNIS/SJaY/saYor0D 00-000-057$-01+1-100 €6

SLOTY $9°091 000 $9°091 0t 18S VOL $J93 29 5319800 00-000-02TS-01#1-100 26

0070091 000 000 000 00°009°T yeuqy dwe) - SIIPAROY WSPMIS 00-000-1Z1$-0111-100 16

007008 00°00Z°1 000 00'002°1 00000°C SaUB[ES §JOY 7 SAUOROD (0-000-0TIS-01¥1-100 06

00°001°¢ 007006 000 007006 00000 SOLIB[ES -SaNIALOY APOg 1UapMIS 00-000-011S-01¥1-100 68

SAANIY Apog JuapmIs 1vl

(OTPIT'DS 9THIL'TS 00°0S 9THITTS 00°08 uoneInpy ALey [eyuassy 1071 TV.LOL
(8051 82°0S1 000 8C0S1 000 ©d-097 00-000-0TTS-10TI1-100 88
(86'€96°1) 86'€96°1 000 86'€96°1 000 SOLIE[ES SOPIE-297 00-000-S115-10T1-100 L8

uoneanpy Aley (enuassy 1071

18975°¢8TS 0L77L8T8S 0008 0L°TL8T8S IS°66€°99€S uoneanpy [¥13ds (071 TV.LOL

6L'86T°1 oL'1Ty 000 oL'1Ty 6v°0TL°1 soueInsu] uotsip dnois-py fevads 00-000-182S-00C1-100 98

LOTOLE 05°S01°1 000 0$°S01°1 LS90T Y souensuj [e3us(] dnois-pg Je1oads 00-000-08TS-00T1-100 'S8
00°005°1 000 000 000 0070051 WBWSINGUILRY ISIN0D-PY [erdddS 00-000-0LTS-00T1-100 +8
0TvL 08°s€1 000 08°S€1 00012 ‘dwo) juewAojdwoun-py [er0adg 00-000-092$-00Z1-100 "€8
00°0€€} 000 000 000 00°0€€1 ‘dwo) s1ayIopm - pA [e10adS 00-000-057S-00Z1-100 T8

AR LA L8TLY 000 L8ILY 86'€80°C udWaIY - Py [e10adS 00-000-0¥TS-00Z1-100 18

19928 000 000 000 19vTy 9j17 dno1g - py [e192dS  00-000-0£2S-00Z1-100 08
610T/0€/9 610T/0€/9 610T/0€/9 6107/0€/9
- 810U/1/L - 810T/1/L - 8T0T/1/L - 810T/1/L uonduosaq / :PqUINN JUN02Y
Suruiewosy pasaqunoug
junoury 2 juadg ssouBIqUINOUT poudd pauoday  198png pardopy

s9po9 193l pue uonosung spund ||y sesuadxgy
JoLysIg |ooyds umo] ybinqgly

0Z6.1 # yoday




0} 40 g abed

Wdiviegy 8Loc/iL/tL

007001 000 000 000 007001 [0ABI-SIJIALG YI[BSH 00-000-08SS-HEI1T-100 $TI
00°L19°CT 00°050°1 000 00°0S0°1 00°L99°€T JUILLSSISSY SIVIAIIS YIBOH 00-000-TEES-FEIT-100 "€T1
(00°08) 00'081 000 00°081 007001 uawdo[aad( JOIJ-5921AIBS YHESH 00-000-06CS-+E1Z-100 "TTI
091 09°TT 000 09T 0081 dwo?) juswiAo[diuaun-sadiAdg YIEdH 00-000-09ZS-vE1T-100 "1TI
00°881 000 000 0070 00881 "dwoy) SIIOM-SOIAIRS YIROH 00-000-05TS-¥E1T-100 0T
9T 0¥ 000 000 000 9T eV JUSWIAINAY - SOAS WIESH 00-000-0¥TS-¥E1C-100 ‘611
€TE9T1 YT6LT 000 YT6LT LY'TYS 1 BOIJ-$3VIAISS 3[edH 00-000-0TTS-¥E1T-100 811
00°€91°0T 000 000 000 00'€91°0C Nd'T - S991A39G U3[e3H 00-000-S11S-FEIT-100 L1
(60059°€) 60°059°€ 000 60°059°€ 000 (asInu)soiie[es-sa01AIS 3[BdH 00-000-011S-¥E1T-100 911
SINARS WEIH $EIT
TULYLTISS EPIL8'LIS 00°STIS €HOPLLIS SS'819°69% SIIAIRG dUBPING OTIT TV.LOL
007008 000 000 000 00°00¢ [ensiA-olpny dueping 00-000-0§95-0C1C-100 S11
00°00% 0070 00°0 000 00°00¥ $400q-30uepIng 00-000-0¥95-0C1C-100 v11
6L1TT 178 000 1T8L 00°00¢ sanddng jessuag-asueping 00-000-019$-0T12-100 €11
00°00¢ 000 000 000 00°00¢ SI€1d-90UBpIE-20IAISg PaYORNUO) 00-000-01€5-0Z1T-100 TT1
(00°sz1) 00°621 00°571 000 000 twowdo[eaa( JoId-soueping (0-000-06Z$-0C1Z-100 111
68 TL'6T 000 TL'6T $8°811 JouRINSUL UOISIA d0URPIND 00-000-18TS-0C1C-100 011
L6'L8S 80°96 000 8096 S0'v89 jeiua(g - duepinh 00-000-08¢S-0T1T-100 601
00°000°1 000 000 000 00°000°1 JUDWSSINQUILSY 38107 ddULPING 00-000-0L2S-0T1T-100 801
(ozon) 0TSy 000 0T'SP 00°s¢ juswAojdwsun-ooueping  00-000-09¢$-0212-100 "L01
0009 000 000 000 00°%09 dwo) s1a3j10M-20uepID 00-000-057S-0Z12-100 901
8€°6L 9%'9¢ 000 9%'9¢ ¥8°501 a7 dnoip - esuepmg 00-000-0£7S-0Z1Z-100 "SO1
8L7900°C LEVTTL 0070 LEVTTL SI'1ETY VOId- 2oueping (00-000-02CS-0T1T-100 ¥0O1
LY'0£8°S 000 000 000 L¥'0€8°S ‘SuJ YifesH - aoueping 00-000-0126-0CTIC-100 €01
18'790°6€ 6£°9VT°91 000 6€°9Y791 0T'60£°SS A1e[es-soueping 00-000-0115-0T1T-100 "TO!
SIDALIG J2UBPIND OTIT
(0r'897°'1D)8 $S'T6E°6S 00°0% SS'76£°68 SI'vZI'SS wes3o.4 [001d§ Jouumg 771 TV.LOL
00°00¢ 000 000 000 00°00¢ saijddng -|ooyog Jewwng 00-000-0195-¢Z1-100 101
610T/0¢/9 610T/0¢/9 6102/0¢/9 6107/0¢/9
- 8102/1/L - 8102/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L uondosaq / JAqUINN JUn0soy
Sulureway paroquinouyg
Junowy 29 Juadg svdURIGUUNOUT pouad pauoday  198png paydopy

0Z6.1 # Hoday

sapo) 103l pue uonodun4 spun4 ||y sosuadx3y

Jo13SIg Jjooyos umo] ybianqpy




0l jo g abed

NdI¥:¢G-v 8L0C/L/LI

0T'L81 0879 $6'91 3394 00°0ST s[eotpoLiad/sauizeSew-s1a108 AreIqrT 00-000-199$-72TC-100 '8Pl
00°000°S 000 000 000 00°000°S $)00¢] ATeiqlj-sadlAlag A1RIQIT 00-000-0+9$-CTTT-100 LT
(P1esn ¥1°T8S 000 $1°TS§ 00°00% sarddng A1e1qij-s901a108 A101Q1T 00-000-019$-TTTC-100 9% 1
(91sL) 91'sL 000 9T'SL 00°0 soueansu] uoisip dnoS-saoiateg AreiqiT 00-000-18¢S-2TTT-100 'SPl
0€01L 89°€LI 000 89°¢L1 86'¢88 soueInsu] [ejua(j dnoxs-ssoiatag AresqT 00-000-087S-TTTT-100 bl
(090) 097 000 09'CT 00T “dwio)) Juswikojdwaun-sadiateg A1e1ql 00-000-0975-2¢TT-100 "Eb1
00°S9 000 000 000 0059 “dwo)) $19410py-5901AI0G AIEIGIT 00-000-0STS-CTTT-100 "TH1
0885 0¥'6C 000 01’62 0788 3] - $01A19S A1RIQIT 00-000-0£TS-TTTT-100 "Iv]
S6LEE'S 20°850°1 0070 T0°'8%0°1 L6'S8EY ©01-$31A1G A1RIGIT 00-000-02TS-TTLT-100 "0F1
y8'861°L PELLOT 000 vELLOT 819LT6 soueinsu] gijesl dnoxs-sso1a1sg Aseiqry 00-000-012S-TTT-100 "6€1
(oo'szI'n) 00°$TI°T 000 00°STIl 000 SOIMNSANS-$I01AIS A1eIGIT 00-000-C11S-2TTT-100 "8€T
9L EEL'EY YT 6651 000 YT 66S°€E] 00°€EE°LS Arepes-sao1a1ag AXe1qry 00-000-0115-222C-100 “LEI
Areaqry zzee
TL'968°91S €0°TS9LS 0008 £0°TSY'LS SL'8PSPTS $AS 4222dS 0S1Z TVLOL
(€0'19) €0°1€ 000 €0°T€ 000 souesnsuj uoistp dnoi3-sa01a1ag 4032dS 00-000-182S-0S1Z-100 9€1
(€T°58) €758 000 €758 000 souensy] feius( dnoss-saviateg 4993dg 00-000-08ZS-0S1Z-100 SEI
00'59T 000 000 000 00'59¢ JUSWUIASINQGUIIAY ISIN0D-5IIAISG 1j000dS (0-000-0LTS-0S1T-100 FE1
0¥'C 0922 000 09'CC 00'$T “dwod juswifojdudun-saoiaiag yoeads 00-000-092S-0S12-100 "€ET
0$'LE 000 000 000 0S'LE “dwo)) SIIoM~$3914138 4022dS 00-000-05TS-0S1T-100 "TEL
(€T91D) €T911 000 €911 000 JuaWRINY - $AS Yooeds 00-000-0vTS-0S1T-100 “1€]
LO'S8T'1 81°9¢y 0070 31°9¢h STITLT ©oY-$00]A10G 1J920dS (00-000-0TTS-0S12-100 "0€1
(sov01°1) S9PO1°1 000 S9H01°1 000 oouensy] yi[eaH dnois-saoialeg yaaads (0-000-012S-0S1Z-100 6¢1
(1r118%) 1L18°S 000 IrIs's 00°0 SaLIB[ES S3PIR-5301A198 Y933dS (0-000-S115-0S1T-100 81
(00°st) 00°SH 000 00'St 000 SINNSQRS-SIIAISG Yo32dS 00-000-T11$-0S1T-100 LTI
00°005°2T 000 000 000 00°00$°CT SaLIe[es-sa01A1ag 902dS (0-000-011$-0S1T-100 "9CI
$IDIAIIS YI3adg OSIT
9€'T66°0¢S LEG88'SS £P°9LTS $6'TI19'SS £L'T88°9PS SINALIS YL $EIT TVIOL
(r¥'L) ¥¥'LOL £7'9LT 10 1€ 00700 sanjddng je1ouas-sadlA1g YI[e3H (00-000-019S-FE€1T-100 'STI
6107/0€/9 610T/0€/9 6102/0€/9 6102/0€/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810Z/1/L uondLIosaq / JGUINN JUN0ddy
Surureway PalaquInous
junowy 2 Juadg SOOURIqUINOUY pouad pauoday  195png pardopy

0Z6.1 # Hoday

sapo9 10alqO pue uoloun4 spun4 ||y sesuadxg

JousIg |ooyds umo] ybundgly




01 o / obed

Ndiveay 8L0C/L/LL

¥8¥1i6 YL6LT 000 PL6LT 8S 611 JUSWINY - SOAS [BAIOULG 00-000-0+ZS-01#2-100 '691
00°SEL 00°1¢C 000 0012 00°9SL soueinsuj 911 dnoss-a01a12§ fedioutid 00-000-0£TS-01¥Z-100 "891
69°65€01 SSTI9Y 000 SSTINY YTTLEY] ©oYy-5301A19S [edIoulld 00-000-02TS-01¥Z-100 L9T
95°916°S¢ SO'TI¥9 000 SO'LIY9 19°LTETY oueansuy (p[eeH dnois-seoiag jedioulld 00-000-01TS-01¥C-100 991
8T 18¥°EY $9'88L°T1 000 $9°88L°T1 £6'697°9S 103eUIpIo0]) [00YDS SWOH - 0AS Ulld 00-000-L11S-01HT-100 'S91
96°0VL Sy P8 LB6°E] 000 $8°L86°¢1 08'8TL°6S Arejeg A1eja10s-901a10g fediouild 00-000-€115-01#C-100 +91
(os'6vL'1) 05'6¥L 1 000 0S°6¥L1 000 $9IM1ISqNs-s901A13§ fedounld 00-000-C11$-014C-100 "€91
17°7€8°9% v9'188°CE 000 9'¥88°C€E $8°91L°6L Arejes-001a10G [edioutid 00-000-011§-01+C-100 'T91
$1A10S [BdIULLY OTHT
0S°668°LLIS 0S°668°LLTS 00°0% 0S'668'LLIS 00°66L°SSES 1 A4081413dNgG - SIIAIG AYLHSIUIWPY OTET TVLOL
0S°668°LLL 0S°668°LL] 000 0S668°LLY 00°66L°SSE JUBWISSISSY jeIoua) 1S 00-000-1€£$-0CET-100 191
) A10s1419dng - SINAIIS JANCLSHIWIPY (TET
09°778'98 S9'ILO'PS 00°0$ S9'1L0'VS STP68°01S uoneonpy Jo pieog 1€ "TVLOL
(s165L) ST6S1°T 000 ST'6S1°C 00°00¥°1 SaN(J eqsA-SaIALRS pH JO PIeod 00-000-0185-01€C-100 091
00°0Sv 000 000 000 00°0S¥ HH 03 quuIdl X3 S3[eS - OAS PH JO pIeod 00-000-€19S-01€T-100 651
00°0¢ 000 000 000 00°0S a1[ddng §,5010152911-5901A108 P JO P10 00-000-C195-01€Z-100 '8S1
00051 000 000 000 00°0S1 asuadxg pH Jo preog - pF Jo preod 00-000-119S-01£Z-100 'LST
00°0SL 000 000 000 00°0SL sa1{ddns-s201A198 PH JO PIEOd 00-000-0195-01€7-100 9§51
00°0SL 000 000 000 00°0sL BuISINAAPE-SIIAIS PH JO PIOd 00-000-0%SS-01€T-100 'SS1
(os'zie) 052161 000 0S°T16°1 00°000°1 §01AI0G [E50}-$901AI0S PH JO PIeOg 00-000-09€S-01€T-100 +S1
00°00S°1 00°0 000 000 00°005°1 uefd eLaidyey 00-000-00€5-01€2-100 €51
Y4443 000 000 000 STHPE BOIJ-§321A335 PH JO PIeOH 00-000-0TTS-01€Z-100 TSI
00°00S°1 000 000 000 00°005°1 Aepes-xomseany/pg JO preod 00-000-111$-01€Z-100 "IS1
00°000°¢ 000 000 000 00°000°€ S9LIR[RS-SI0IAIRS PH JO pieod 00-000-0115-01€T-100 '0S1
uonednpy Jo pleog Q1€T
S6°'8£6°6SS 8€°S9L‘BIS 6918 £ 8PL‘SIS EPOL'SLS Kreaqry 7277 "TVLOL
00°000°1 000 000 000 00°000°T a1emyos soindwiod-sadiatag Keiqi 00-000-0L9$-2TTT-100 '6¥1
6102/0¢€/9 6102/0¢€/9 6102/0¢/9 610T/0€/9
- 810T/1/L - 810¢/1/L - 810¢/1/L - 810T/1/L uondnosa( / LqUNN JUN0dY
Suruteway paraquinous]
unowy 2 Wadg $3OURIGUINIUY pouad pavoday  198png paydopy

0Z6.1 # Hoday

sopo9 109lqO pue uonoung spund ||y sesuadx3g

Joulsiq Jooyds umo | ybinqgly




01 jo g sbed

WdlPesy 8L0C/L/LL

08'8LS"L 0v ¥vT’l 000 g Al 0T'€78°8 1 esH dnois-jueld JO utew/uonessdg 00-000-012S-009Z-100 061
(05779t 05°229°S 000 05'TT9°S 007000 samnsqns-jueld JO Jurewy/uoiedd0 00-000-2115-0092-100 681
99°90¥° €y 70'6€9°€T 000 T0°6£9°€T 89°S10°L9 solefes-jueld JO urewyuoneado 00-000-0115-009Z-100 881
ju|J Jo dueudAuUiL A uoneddQ 009z
00°000°928 00°08 00°0S 00°0S 00°000°9Z8 SUB0] LR, 304§ 0757 TV.LOL
00°000°9C 000 000 000 00°000°9T S2JB3U] SUBOT ULIY |, HOYS-SIIAIRG [e9SL] 00-000-0€8S-0CSC-100 'L81
SUB0] W], J10YS 0TST
6T°LES'06TS 0€°LES'06TS 0008 0£°LES'06TS 6SVLO'I8SS 1p100D) P [8139dg - $2214138 3antoddng 0ZyT TV.LOL
6 LES 06T 0€°L£5°06T 000 0£7LES06T 65 L0 18S 1S Wolj S3JIAIIG [eUOIsSJ0ld 00-000-CEES-0THT-100 981
1p.1000) pq [e12adg - $921A10¢§ danoddng 0zpT
TL'9E0°90CS 66207188 00'701°1S 66'860°08S 1L'6£T°L8TS 9214498 [edduilg 01T TV.LOL
00°1L8 00°679 000 00679 00°005°1 $334 pue san (00-000-018S-01¥Z-100 "$81
00°05T°1 000 000 000 00°0SZ°1 justudinby 193ndwo) - soA§ fedulld 00-000-F€LS-01+T-100 +81
(szs10) STSI16 000 STS16 00°00L SaUNIXif/ wing -$0Ag jeddulld 00-000-£€LS-01¥C-100 €81
00°059 00°0S¢ 000 00'0s¢ 00°000°T a1eMy0g 19Indwo]) - soAg sjedioutid 00-000-0L9S-01¥T-100 "T8T
WILL] 65°8C8 000 65878 00°000°C Anadysatyddng ao1g50-5901A108 [edidulld  00-000-019S-01¥2-100 181
007008°C 000 000 000 00°005°C [oABI}-S301A13G [edidulld 00-000-08SS-01¥T-100 081
00°005°1 000 000 000 00°005°t 28e1504 -'50AS [ediouttd 00-000-CESS-01T-100 "6L1
£1°L06°C L8'T60°1 000 L8'T60°1 00°000°S suoydaar-savialag [edidutld 00-000-0€SS-01¥T-100 "8L1
89°9L1°S TEELT] 00°0¥¢ [4 3210 00°05¥°9 '$0A§ Jo1d0)) ~'saag [edouiid 00-000-0€¥S-01+C-100 "LLT
00°00S°1 000 00°0 000 0070081 droutig-asuadxy J01d-s901a10§ [ediouild 00-000-162$-01+2-100 9LI
009¢L 009L 00'v9L 000 00°005°1 JuswdolaAs(] Joid -'soag [ediouild 00-000-0675-014C-100 "SL1
69'688 76991 000 6991 £€9°950°1 oueinsu] uoisiA dnoid-saotaieg [edioutid 00-000-18TS-01¥C-100 L1
T #98°1 S9°LSS 000 §9°LSS LOTTY'T oueansu] jejua(] dnoss-seotaisg jedoulld 00-000-087S-01¥Z-100 €L1
00°00T 00°008°1 000 00°008°T 00°000°C "qUIIRY 9SIN0D ~'SAAS fedioutid 00-000-0LTS-01+C-100 TLI
ors1) 0¥'06 000 0¥°06 00'sL “dwo) swAojdwoun-so1aiag jedidulld 00-000-09¢S-01¥T-100 L1
00°028°1 000 000 000 00°0Z8°1 "dwod $19310-5901A10G [BdPUL] 00-000-05ZS-01#Z-100 0L1
610T/0€/9 6102/0£/9 610¢T/0¢/9 610T/0¢/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L uondiosa(] / QNN JUnoddy
Surureway palaquInouz]
junowy 2 Juadg SI0UBIqUINOUT] pouad pauoday  198png pardopy

s9po7 103lgO pue uolduny spun4 ||y sesuadx3
JoL3sIg [ooyos umo] ybunqgly

026/ # Hoday




0} Jo 6 abed

WdIyegy 8L0C/L/LL

00'290°81 00'8€6°T 00'8€6°1 000 00°000°0T S20OUEINSU] 19A0D 0} WIS01 POO, 01 1911, 00-000-0£6S-00T€-100 ¥iT
NIALRS Poo] 001€
TL079°18S 0€° ISH'SLS 00°0% 0’ ISH'8LS 70°7L0'091S $2IALIS uonplodsueLY, 00LZ TVLOL
00'9€7°8L 00°9€T°8L 000 00'9€T°8L 00'TLY9S1 NS wolj 321AIRS sig 00-000-TEES-00LT-100 €IT
8zsh 0e'sI 000 0e'Sl 00 VOld psenD uIssos) 00-000-02ZS-00LT-100 TIT
00°00¥°€ 0000T 000 00°00T 00°009°¢ prenp Juissor) 00-000-S115-00LT-100 11T
$3914408 uonerodsueay 00LZ
SOTLY'LIES LL9OV'LLS T L80°0TS SS'GIE'LSS P 6L8 POVS jueid Jo ueudjuIep/ucnedo 0097 TV.LOL
00°005°¢ 000 000 000 00°005°€ X1 29 sImlung-jued jO jutewy/uonead 00-000-€€L5-009C-100 01T
00°000°T 000 000 000 00°000°1 Juswdmnby -Jueld Jo Jurely/uonesad0 00-000-0€LS-0092-100 ‘60T
8LTHS €T TTLSY'9T TTLROOT 00°0L£9 00°000°0S1 sjuswaAordu-jueld JO JutewyuonessdO 00-000-01L5-009T-100 802
T0°€TH'S 86°9LS°1 000 869L5°1 00°000°01 Jajem-iueld JO wwew/13do 00-000-+295-0092-100 "L0OT
LE'LSY6T £9°Tpe 000 £9°CPE 00°000°0€ suedoyd - juejd/uonend 00-000-£295-0092-100 90T
19°009°8€ 6€°66€°1 000 6€°66€°T 00°000°0% Aoinodjg-iueld JO uewyuonersdo 00-000-7795-009T-100 "S0T
(00°08¥°¢) 00°08%°¢ 000 00°08%°t 000 301A10§ AS1oug-jue|d JO utew/uonendo 00-000-0795-009Z-100 0T
L609LT1 £0°6€T°E 000 £0°6£T°E 00°000°S1 sa[ddng [e1poisn)-jueld JO utew/12d0Q 00-000-019S-0092-100 '€0T
68196 S1'8¢ 000 S1'8¢€ 00009 [oAes-ueld JO Jurew/13dO  00-000-0855-0092-100 TOT
0S'S9'p 05'S¥8 000 05'Sv8 00°00S°S 301195 U0 - Jue[d JO JUeA/AD 00-000-9ES-009Z-100 "T10T
67'500°C 167 000 1Sv6¥ 00°005°¢ sieday - Jurejyuonelado 00-000-£E¥S-0092-100 00T
81°LOT°SY 75768y 000 TST68°Y 00°000°0S jureA/sireday - Jued Jo Jutey/uonRIddO 00-000-ZEFS-009C-100 661
00°005°C 000 000 000 00°005°C edoy] - spunois-ueld JO JuieuyuonesddQ 00-000-1€9S-009T-100 ‘861
TTSIST 8L'186 000 8L'¥86 00°005°¢ 29]]0) 95eques-jueld JO Iureu/uonerxdg 00-000-1ZS-009T-100 "L61
STovy ol 000 ot LE0SS ] uoisiA dnoid-jueld JO Jurew/uonesdd) 00-000-187S-0097-100 961
LSHS9°1 0L769T 000 0L°69T LTYT6L 1 1eua( dnoi3-jueid JO utewyuonesddo 00-000-0825-0092-100 'S61
08+ 0T'sy 000 0TSy 00°0¢ O wawkojdwsun-jued 3O wrewyuonendo 00-000-0975-0092-100 v61
00019 000 000 000 00019 dwo) s1oy10Mm-Jueld JO urew/uonesad) 00-000-0$2S-0092-100 €61
242 L¥'86¥ 000 Ly 86¥ 16°0v€°1 JUALIRINNY ~Jueld JO JUIRN/I2AO 00-000-0%TS-009T-100 261
¥E'80C°C $9°97T°C 000 $9'97C°C 66'VEY'S esl-jue]d JO utewyuonendy 00-000-07TS-0097-100 161
6107/0¢/9 6107/0¢/9 6107/0¢/9 610T/0¢/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T1/L - 810T/1/L - 8107/1/L uonduosaq / Jsquiny JunoddYy
Surueway parequindug
unowy 2 adg SIoUBIGUINOUT pouag pauoday  198png paydopy

0621 # Hoday

sapos 19alqO pue uoposuny spun4 ||y sesuadx3y

Jou}sig [00Y9S umo] ybingy




01 j0 0} 9bed

Wdlyesy 8L0c/H/LL

ELPLY'TES'PS  68'€08°'€9T'IS  €£8°007°0SS 90'€09‘€1T°1S T98LT'IGL'SS TVLOL ANVID
(80°£09°5£)$ 80°€09°S€S 00°0% 80°€09'SES 00708 we13014 pooy (0§ TV.LOL
(80°€09°SE)$ 80°€09'S€S 00708 80°€09°SES 00708 NARS pooy 001E TV.ILOL
(€4'956°1) €7'956°t 000 £V°956°1 00°0 SOSEYDINJ JUBID A /SHNL] - 9AS P00 00-000-119S-001€-10S "STT
(or'zzv'en) 01°ZTY'El 000 01°TTYEl 000 sarfddngysaseyaing - 991A19§ oo 00-000-0195-001£-10§ ¥TT
(8€'vTE) 1% 743 000 8EYTE 000 [sARLL - YounTI0H 00-000-085$-001€-106 €CT
(zrotn [AN U 000 crort 000 UOISIA - 93IAIRS POO] 00-000-18TS-001€-10S 'TTT
(0T65¢) 0765t 000 07'65¢ 000 [euag 991AI9S POO 00-000-08TS-001€-10S "12C
(08'L9) 08°L9 000 08°L9 000 Juswkojduraun 9AS pood 00-000-09TS-001€-10S 07T
(6¥°861) 67'861 000 67861 000 usWwAINeY - WeIdold pood 00-000-0¥TS-001£-10S 61T
(68986) 68986 000 68°986 000 QIBDIPIN 78 VDI - 991A13§ poog (0-000-0TTS-001€-10S 81T
(8¢169°%) 8€° 169 000 8€°169y 000 U3[eaH] sdnoiD - ad1A13S Pood 00-000-01TS-001€-106 "LIT
(6z98t°c1) 6798t €l 000 67°98¥€1 000 Sallees - 901AI9G poo, 00-000-011$-001€-10S 91T

NIARS PO 001€
weiolxg pooy 10S

(00°000°9)s 00700098 00°0% 00°000°9S 00°0S jueld) LAY 10€ TVLOL
(00°000°9)$ 007000°98 00°0% 00°000°9S 00°08 feuononysuy 0011 TVLOL
(00°000°9) 00°000°9 000 00°000°9 000 uswdmbg - LA ISIY 00-000-0€L5-0011-10€ 'SIT

[euondnnSuI 0011
juet) LAY 10€

IS'LLO'PLS'PS  T800T'TTT'IS  €8°00T°0SS 86°666°TLT‘IS T9'8LT96LSS punyj [6U99 100 TV.LOL

00°790'818 00'8£6°'1S 00°8€6'1S 00°08 00°000°078 91ALS ooy 001€ TVLOL
6102/0¢€/9 6102/0€/9 610T/0€/9 6102/0¢/9
- 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810T/1/L - 810TUT/L uondiisa(] / 1qUInN JUN0dY
Surureway] paloqunduy
junowy 7 juadg S9OUBIqUINDUL pouad peuoday  198png paidopy

0zZ6.1 # poday

sapo) 393l pue uolduny spun4 ||y sesuadx3y

Jou3SI jooyas umo] ybuanqpy




10/25/2018 State Board of Education issues decisions on forced Act 46 mergers - VTDigger

IN THE NEWS Vermont Catholic Church Election poll Christine Hallquist David Zuckerman Don Turner
VTDigger Election Guide

. Business & Economy « Criminaljustice ~+ Education Energy & Environment ¢ Health Care  « politics ¢ People &Places

EDUCATION

State Board of Education issues decisions on forced Act 46 mergers

By Lola Duffort
Oct 18 2018

rf 283 l r

ot
&

3 T R

Krista Huling is chair of the State Board of Education. Photo by Bob LoCicero/VTDigger

he State Board of Education made its first round of decisions on the question of forced mergers under Act 46 on Wednesday, issuing provisional
judgments on most of the alternative proposals put forward by school districts.

The State Board must make the final call on 43 proposals put forward by roughly 90 school districts that haven’t consolidated voluntarily yet under
the law. Most districts have asked the state to leave districts as stand-alone entities; a handful ask to be merged.

The Agency of Education, under then-interim Secretary of Education Heather Bouchey, released recommendations eaxlier this summer on the
alternative proposals. And in most of the cases so far, the State Board has taken their cue from the secretary’s plan, voting against the Agency’s
recommendations in only four instances.

As of Wednesday, the State Board had made decisions on 30 of 43 alternative proposals.

The board started with “easy” cases, voting quickly — in agreement with the secretary’s plan — not to merge 10 districts that just didn’t have
structurally alike neighbors. Act 46 won’t allow forced mergers between two districts with different operating structures.

Those districts were Arlington, Canaan, Coventry, Sharon, South Hero, Strafford, Thetford, Vernon, Windsor/West Windsor and Wolcott.
“We are doing ‘dessert first.’ These are the easy ones,” board chair Krista Huling said. “In the next (ones), we'll have plenty to talk about.”

The board then moved on to proposals governing union high schools with elementary districts operating the same grades. Members decided to merge
the Brattleboro Union High school board with the Brattleboro, Putney, Guilford, and Dummerston boards. It also voted to consolidate the school



10/25/2018 State Board of Education issues decisions on forced Act 46 mergers - VTDigger

O

~ CUITent partners. ine secrétary s pian reassigns sneiaon o 3 QIITerent SUPErviSory Union, Dut The STaté Boara nas Hot yet votea about wnat to ao witn

the orphan district.

Secretary of Education Dan French echoed their concerns, arguing that the state should likely intervene and send additional resources to the
supervisory union to get it to where it needs to be. Requiring two different mergers would be asking too much,

“It's just a reallv challenging scenario. I don’t see how it would be successful,” French said.

State Board members broke most often with the secretary’s plan in the case of union high school districts whose member districts had different
operating structures.

The secretary had recommended three separate mergers within the North Country Union Supervisory Union ~ consolidating Charleston with
Brighton, Derby with Holland, and jay with Westfield, Board members disagreed, arguing that such small mergers wouldn’t help achieve economies
of scale and would leave behind complicated governance structures all the same.

“Merging for the sake of merging doesn’t seem to get us anywhere,” board member Stacy Weinberger said.

In two other cases, board members rejected the secretary’s recommendation that for the Bellows Falls Union and the Hazen Union districts, no
mergers occur. The board, which supports a merger, will have to decide at a future meeting what consolidations would look like for the two regions.

Board members agreed with the secretary’s plan to leave the non-operating districts of Pittsfield, Sandgate, Searsburg, Stratton and Windhall as
stand-alones.

The State Board has until Nov. 30 to issue its final plan under the law, but it has set several special meetings to help school districts get started with
their budgeting cycles. The board has 12 alternative proposals left to make decisions about. The next meeting is Oct. 29.

Correction: An earlier version of this article incorrectly reported that Rochester was a member town of the Union - 32 Middle/High School district. It is
not; Worcester is.

VTDIGGR

Filed under:
DUCATION
Tags: Act 46, Vermont State Board of Education

[ REPORT AN ERROR ] [ UPLOAD A DOCUMENT ][ TIP DROP ]

. About Lola

Lola Duffort is VIDigger's education reporter. Prior to Digger, Lola
covered schools for the Concord Monitor in New Hampshire and the
i Rutland Herald. She has also freelanced for the Miami Herald in

‘ Florida, where she grew up. She is a graduate of McGill University in
i Canada.

& Email: lduffort@vtdigger.org

Latest stories by Lola

« Vermont State Colleges System sees continued decline in
enrollment

» Teacher health care reimbursements still in disarray

+ Tuition tracker shows sticker prices at Vermont colleges
continue to climb

[ Y 7 N DX TSP, InAAniantams o .



2~ VERMONT

State of Vermont [phone] 802-479-1030 Agency of Education
219 North Main Street, Suite 402 [fax] 802-479-
1835

Barre, VT 05641
education. vermont.gov

October 24, 2018

Michael Clark, Superintendent
Grand Isle Supervisory Union
5038 US Route 2

North Hero, VT 05474-9401

Dear Superintendent Clark,

The Consolidated Federal Programs (CFP) Team of the Vermont Agency of Education
conducted an on-site monitoring visit of the Grand Isle Supervisory Union’s CFPs on March 15,
2018. We are pleased to report that all required actions have been completed and the Agency
accepts your responses. Therefore, the monitoring visit itself is considered finalized and all
corresponding issues brought forth from that visit that needed to be addressed are considered
resolved.

I do want to commend the Supervisory Union’s CFP Team Leader, Megan Grube for her
diligent work in both organizing the visit and submitting all the required documentation to
resolve the outstanding issues. She was a pleasure to work with and we look forwarad to our
continued interactions.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns that you may have or that may
arise from this monitoring visit at (802) 479-1370.

Sincerely,

Pl L. (kbeth

Karen Abbott, CFP Grants Manager
On behalf of the Consolidated Federal Programs Team

cc: Megan Grube, Director of Curriculum




